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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.
Amsterdam

Report of the board of Managing Directors

In accordance with the Articles of Association of ERB New Europe Funding 1I B.V., the Board of Managing Directors herewith
submits the Annual Report of ERB New Europe Funding Il B.V. (the Company) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Key Activities

ERB New Europe Funding 11 B.V. (the Company) was incorporated on April 24, 2008 and has its registered and office address at
Herengracht 500, 1017 CB, Amsterdam, The Netherlands, The Company is incorporated in The Netherlands and is wholly owned by
ERB New Europe Holding B.V., a wholly owned subsidiary of Eurobank Ergasias S.A. in Greece. On November 15, 2012 the
Company changed its name to ERB New Europe Funding I1 B.V. (former name: EFG New Europe Funding I B.V.).

The key activities of the Company are to invest in loans granted to Romanian customers (originated by the group Company Bancpost
$.A.) in Romania. All loans and advances to customers are existing loans to Romanian customers acquired from the group Company
Bancpost S.A. The Company itself is funded directly by Eurobank Cyprus Ltd. in Cyprus.

Position of Eurobank Group
Macroeconomic environment

Greece's real GDP is expected to grow by 1.8% in 2017, according to the 2018 Draft Budget submitted in Parliament in early October
2017 (European Commission Autumn Forecast for 2017 at 1.6%) from -0.03% in 2016, according to recent Hellenic Statistical
Authority (ELSTAT) data. On the fiscal front, the 2016 Greece’s primary balance registered a surplus of 3.9% of GDP outperforming
the 0.5% of GDP Third Economic Adjustment Program (TEAP) target. According to the 2018 Draft Budget the primary surplus for
2017 and 2018 is expected at 2.2% and 3.6% of GDP, respectively.

In June 2017, Greece, after the implementation of a series of prior actions including structural reforms and fiscal structural measures
amounting to 2% of GDP for the post program peried, successfully concluded the second review of TEAP, which paved the way for
the release of the next loan tranche to Greece under the existing adjustment program, amounting to € 8.5 bn in two sub-tranches, for
debt servicing needs and arrears clearance. The first sub=tranche of € 7.7 bn has been disbursed in June 2017. The second sub-tranche
of € 0.8 bn was disbursed in late October 2017 after the progress by the Greek authorities towards the clearance of the general
government arrears to the private sector. On 25 July 2017, the Greek government, on the back of the aforementioned positive
developments, issued a € 3 bn five-year bond at a yield of 4.625% for the first time since July 2014, The proceeds of the bond issue
will be used for further liability/debt management and for the build-up of a state cash buffer in the context of the 15 June 2017
Eurogroup's decisions.

The completion of the second program review has reduced the uncertainties that prevailed during the first months of the year and
improved expectations for an increase in the domestic economic activity in the second half of 2017. The third review of TEAP
commenced at the end of October 2017 and its timely completion would lead to the disbursement of an additional € 5 bn. The decisive
implementation of the reforms agreed in the context of the TEAP, the implementation of further debt relief measures in accordance
with 24 May 2016 Eurogroup decisions, the mobilization of European Union (EU) funding to support domestic investment and job
creation, the attraction of foreign and domestic capital and the adoption of an extrovert economic development model would facilitate
the restoration of confidence in the prospects of the Greek economy and the further stabilization of the domestic economic
envir which are y conditions for the retum of the country to a strong and sustainable growth path.
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING Il B.V,
Amsterdam

Report of the board of Managing Directors

Position of Eurobank Group (continued)

Currently, the main risks and uncertainties are associated with (a) the possible delays in the implementation of the reforms’ agenda in
order to meet the next targets and milestones of the TEAP, (b) the impact on the level of economic activity and on the attraction of
direct investments from the fiscal and social security-related measures agreed under the reviews of the TEAP, (¢) the timing of a full
lift of restrictions in the free movement of capital and the respective impact on the level of economic activity, (d) the possible slow
pace of deposits inflows and/ or possible delays in the effective management of non-performing exposures (NPEs) as a result of the
challenging macroeconomic conditions in Greece and (¢) the geopolitical conditions in the broader region and the external shocks from
a slowdown in the global economy.

Liquidity risk

In accordance with the agreement with the European partners the authorities are committed to preserving sufficient liquidity in the
banking system, as long as Greece meets its obligations under the ESM program. The successful completion of the second review of
the TEAP has enhanced Greece's credibility towards the international markets and improved the domestic economic sentiment, which
along with the return to positive economic growth rate is expected to accelerate in turn the deposit inflows in the banking system, the
faster relaxation of capital controls and the further access to the markets for liquidity.

As at 30 September 2017, Eurobank (the Bank) has managed to reduce its dependence on Eurosystem funding mainly through asset
deleveraging, deposit inflows and increased market repos on covered bonds and Greek treasury bills. In the same context, the Bank
also reduced its participation in the second stream of the Hellenic Republic’s liquidity support plan.

Solvency risk

The Group monitors closely the developments in the Greek macroeconomic environment taking into account its direct and indirect
exposure to sovercign risk. A major area of focus is the active management of non-performing exposures, with the aim to substantially
reduce their stock in accordance with the Bank’s operational targets and taking advantage of the Group’s internal infrastructure, the
important legislative changes and the external partnerships that have taken or are expected to take place.

The Group remains focused on the organic strengthening of its capital position by the further expansion of pre-provision income while
maintaining its robust risk management practices, and by proceeding to additional initiatives d with the restructuring,
transformation or optimization of operations, in Greece and abroad, that will generate or release further capital and/or reduce risk
weighted assets. The Group's Common Equity Tier | (CET1) ratio stood at 17.3 % at 30 September 2017 (31 December 2016: 17.6%)
and the net profit attributable to shareholders amounted to € 61 million for the period ended 30 September 2017 (31 December 2016: €
230 million).

The Management, taking into consideration the above factors relating to the adequacy of the Group’s capital position and its
anticipated continued access to E funding over the for ble future, as well as the improving macroeconomic conditions in
Greece, has been satisfied that the financial statements of the Company can be prepared on a going concern basis,
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.

Amsterdam

Report of the board of Managing Directors

Credit Rating of Eurobank Group

The parent company’s (Eurobank Ergasias Group) long term rating was 'CCC+' at August 2016 (2015: 'SD, 2014: CCC+) according to
the Standard & Poor’s credit rating.

Result

In the cwrent financial year the Company recorded a profit of EUR 10.761.289 (2015: profit of EUR 402.535), of which EUR
11.668.242 relates to other operating income (2015: EUR 2.030.123), which is set out in detail in the attached Income Statcment.

In the second quarter of 2016, ERB New Europe Funding 1I B.V. completed the assignment of a portfolio of non-performing gross
loans of EUR 26 million (EUR 26 million, net of impairment allowance), which represented significant part of consumer unsecured
loans past duc more than 90 days as at 31 December 2015. Overall, the transactions resulted in a gain of EUR 10 million, that has been
recognized in “Other operating income’.

Risk Management

The Board of Managing Director utilizes a risk management policy and receives regular reports to enable prompt identification of
financial risk so that appropriate actions may be taken. The Company employs written policy and procedures that sets out specific
guidelines to manage foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and the use of financial instruments to manage these.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty 1o a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the loans and advances to customers. For credit risk management reporting
purposes, the Company considers and consolidates all elements of credit risk exposure (such as individual obligor risk, sector risk,
repayment risk, etc.). For a further analysis we refer to note 5.1 in the Notes to the Balance Sheet and Statement of Comprehensive
income of this report.

Market risk

The Company takes on exposure to market risk, which is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risks arise from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all
of which arc exposed to gencral and specific movements and changes in the level of volatility of market rates of prices such as interest
rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices.

Interest rate risk

The risk that future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Loan assets and loan
liabilities are undertaken back to back on terms that both relate to the same variable Euribor or Libor rate. The risk is fully
comp d by this bal; and hence there is no sensitivity risk to a change in interest rate.

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that assets or liabilities in foreign currencies will fluctuate in value due to exchange rate fluctuations.
Loan assets and loan liabilities are undertaken back to back in the identical currencies.

Outlook

The Company will continue operating in the same manner and maintaining existing portfolio of clients. No significant new business and
relationship are planned for 2016. Funding of the Company will remain the same and under the same terms. Capital base of the
Company is adequate and no increase is needed. No investments are planned either in human resources or in any other area.
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.
Amsterdam

Report of the board of Managing Directors

Post balance sheet events

Legislation on the conversion of CHF denominated loans to Romanian Leu

On 18 October 2016, the R ian parli imously passed a bill that allows borrowers to convert Swiss franc-On 18 October
2016, the Romanian parliament unanimously passed a bill that allows borrowers to convert Swiss franc-denominated loans into local
currency ‘Leu’ using the exchange rate prevailing on the date they were originated. On 7 February 2017, the Romanian Constitutional
Court (RCC) ruled that the above legislation is unconstitutional. The Court decision was grounded mainly on the breach of the
principle of ‘bicameralism’ (ie. the bill, in the form adopted by the Chamber of Deputies, is significantly different to the one adopted
by the Senate) and the introduction of an ‘automatic hardship’ mechanism which is unfair to creditors.

Romanian Legislation on the discharge of debt obligations (‘Datio in Solutum’)

In May 2016, Law 77/2016 on the discharge of debt obligations (‘Datio in Solutum’) came into force in Romania. In particular, the
said law provides for the discharge in full and under certain preconditions of the loans contracted by individuals and secured by
mortgage arrangements by ‘payment in kind" through the transfer of the mortgaged property.

According to the decision of the Romanian Constitutional Court (RCC) dated 25 October 2016 which was published in the Romanian
Official Gazette on 18 January 2017, the specific law is partially unconstitutional and the Romanian courts of law shall verify the
existence of hardship conditions when called to decide upon a ‘Datio in Solutum’ case based on this law.

Above mentioned post balance sheet events do not affect the financial position of the Company as at 31.12.2016.
Future Developments

Eurobank Ergasias S.A. is the sole sharcholder of ERB New Europe Holding B.V. (the immediate parent and controlling entity of the
Company). Further and on the basis of the analysis of the Company’s profitability, capitalization and funding structure, the Directors
are satisfied that the Company has adequate resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future.

Composition of the board

The size and composition of the Board of Managing Directors and the combined experience and expertise should reflect the best fit for
profile and strategy of the Company. Currently all four members of the Board are male. The Company is aware that the gender
diversity is below the goals as set out in article 2:276 section 2 of the Dutch Civil Code and the Company will pay close attention to
gender diversity in the process of recruiting and appointing new Managing Directors.

As per January 30, 2017, Mr. E.R. Janssenss has resigned as Managing Director of the Company, and as per same date Mr. L.P.
Elstershamis has been appointed as Managing Director of the Company.

Amsterdam, January 31, 2018

The Board of Managing Directors,

S. Psychogyios E. Zois

L.P. Elstershamis R. Wemmi
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.

Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2016

(amounts in EUR, after appropriation of results)

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Loans & advances to customers
Current Assets
Loans & advances to customers
Other receivables
Income tax receivable
Cash and cash equivalents
TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Note

Capital and reserves attributable to equity holders of the company

Issued and paid-up capital
Share premium

Accumulated profits

Current Liabilities
Borrowings from group company
Interest payable to group company
Other payables

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

10
10
10

11
12
13

31/1212016 31/12/2015
240,704,077 285,295,502
66,191,274 50,563,490
4,119,547 1,371,482
418238 458213
6,640,175 6,244,566
318,073.311 343,933,253
20,000 20,000
11,980,000 11,980,000
17,044,712 6,283 424
29,044,712 18,283 424
281,595,472 322,304,358
630,282 174,221
6,802,845 3,171,250
289,028,599 325,649,829
318,073.311 343,933,253

The notes to the Financial Statements on pages 10 to 33 form an integral part of these Financial Statements
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.

Income Statement
for the financial year ended December 31, 2016
(amounts in EUR)

Note 01/01-31/12/2016 01/01-31/12/2015

Financial income and expenses
Interest income

14 19,161,665 22,376,518
Interest expense 15 (18,639,795) (21,935,846)
521,870 440,672
Other operating income / (expense) 11,668,242 2,030,123
Operating income 12,190,112 2,470,794
Foreign exchange loss (495,106) (1,458.837)
Operating costs 16 (892,618) (572,128)
Profit before taxation 10,802,389 439,829
Corporate income tax expense 17 (41,100) (37,294)
Profit after taxation 10,761,289 402,535

The notes to the Financial Statements on pages 10 to 33 form an integral part of these Financial Statements
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.

Statement of comprehensive income
for the financial year ended December 31, 2016
(amounts in EUR)

Notes 01/01-31/12/2016 01/01-31/12/2015

Profit after taxation 10,761,289 402,535
Other comprehensive income:
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -
10,761,289 402,535

Total comprehensive income for the year

The notes to the Financial Statements on pages 10 to 33 forin an integral part of these Financial Statements

Page 7




ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.

Cash Flow Statement
for the financial year ended December 31, 2016
(amounts in EUR)

Note 1/1-31/1212016 1/1-31/12/2015
Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit / (Loss) before taxation 10,802,389 439,829
Adjustments for:
Interest income 14 (19,161,665) (22,376,518)
Interest expenses 15 18,639,795 21,935,846
10,280,518 (843)
Net decrease/ (increase) in loans & advances 17,022,669 29,924,207
Writedown of borrowings from group company (18,254,323) (15,603,643)
Net decrease/ (increase) in other receivables (248,065) 52,795,725
Net decrease/ (increase) in other payables 1,131,595 954,999
Cash generated from operations 28,186,717 83,674,088
Income taxes paid 17 (1,125) (17,288)
Interest received 31,102,637 25,394,698
Interest paid (18,183,734) (23,327,183)
41,104,495 85,724,315
Net cash from operation activities: 41,104,495 85,724 315
Cash flows from financing activities:
Increase in borrowings from group company 1 52,420,526 -
Repayment of borrowings from group company 12 (76,285,588) (45,244,268)
Writedown of borrowings from group company (18,254,323) (69,271,206)
Unrealised currency transiation (gains)/losses 1,410,500 27,172,994
Nelt cash used in financing activities (40,708,886) (87,342 480)
Net (Decrease) / Increase in cash and cash equivalents 9 395,609 (1,618,165)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the ycar 9 6,244,566 7,862,730
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 9 6,640,175 6,244,566

Cash flow from investing activities:
During the financial year 2016 there were no investing activities in the Company.

The notes to the Financial Statements on pages 10 to 33 form an integral part of these Financial Statements
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.

Statement of changes in equity
for the financial year ended December 31, 2016
(amounts in EUR)

EQUITY
The movements in EUR in the year under review can be summarized as follows:

Attributable to owners of the parent

Issued and Share Accumulated
paid-up capital premium profits Total equity

Balance as at January 1, 2015 20,000 11,980,000 5,880,889 17,880,889
Profit for the year - - 402,535 402,535
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - - -

Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - 402,535 402,535
Balance as at December 31, 2015 20,000 11,980,000 6,283,424 18,283,424
Balance as at January 1, 2016 20,000 11,980,000 6,283 424 18,283,424
Profit for the year - - 10,761,289 10,761,289
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - - -

Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - 10,761,289 10,761,289
Balance as at December 31, 2016 20,000 11,980,000 17,044,713 29,044,713

The notes to the Financial Statements on pages 10 to 33 form an integral part of these Financial Statements
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.

Nates to the Financlal Statements as at December 31, 2016
{amounts in EUR)

GENERAL

ERB New Europe Funding 11 B V. (the Company) was incorporated on April 24, 2008 and has its registered and oflice address at Herengracht 500, 1017 CB, Amsterdam, the
Netherlands The Company 13 invorporated in The Netherlands and is whelly owned by ERB New Euope [lolding B ¥, a wholly owned subsidiary of Eurobank Ergasias S A
mn Gieece The Company's Chamber of Commerce number is 34300657

In November 2015, following the completion of the Bank's share capital werease, fully covered by wmstors, nstilutional znd others the pereentape of the Bank's ordinary
sharcs with voting rights held by the TIFSE decreascd from 35 41% 10 2 38%

Despute the d decrease of 1l ige. the HFSF a3 still considered 1o have significant 1nfluence over the Hank. In panticolar. i the context of the
Law 3864/2010, as in foree, LIFSF exercues its voling tights i the Bank's General Assembly only for decisions coneeming the amendment of the Bank’s Adicles of
Association, including the merease of decrease of the Bank’s capital or the grantong of a conespondung suthorwzstion to the Bank's Buard, decisions copceming the mergers,
divsions, conversions, revivals, extension of duration o dissolution of the Bank, the transter of assets, or any other issue requunng approval by an increased majonity 43
provided for in Company Law 2191920 In addition, the Bank has entered into a new Relationship Framework Agreement (RFA} wath the HFSF on 4 Decemiber 2015
replacing the previous one, signed an 26 August 2014

“The key actmly of the Company 15 to invest m granted laans to Romanian customers (origmated by the Furvhank Frgasus 8.4 n Romama) All loans and advances lo
cutomers are acquired from the group company Bancpoat § A ‘The Company tiseli1s funded direelly by Hurohank Cyprus Lid

These financial statements were approved and authonzed for issue by the Board of Managing Directurs on December 10, 2017

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The prncipal sccounting policies adopted in the preparation of these linancial statements are st out below

Basls of preparation

The financial statements have been prepaned in accordunce with Internationsl Financial Reporting Standaids (IFRS) issued by the IASB, as endorsed by the Eurepean Union
(EU). and in particular with those 1FRSs and IFRIC intepretations 1ssued and effective or ssued and early adopted as at the tine of preparing these statements These

financial statements have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention and ongoing concern basis.

The policics set out below have been consistently apphied fo the vears 2016 and 2015, except as described helow Where necessary, comparative figuns have been adjusted to
conform with changes in presentation in the cument vear

The wn of financial n ity with [FRS requures the use of sstimates and assumptions that alledt the reported amounts of assets and babilities and
disclosure of contngent Liabilities al the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses dunng the reporting penod - Although these
estimates are based on management's best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results ultrmately may difier from those estimates

Amendments to standards adopted by the Company

The following amendments to standsinds, as 1ssued by the Intenational Accownting Standards Board (IASH} and endorsed by the Eurupean Unioa (EU), apply trom 1 January
2016

IAS 1, Amenument-Disclosure initiative
“The amendment clarifies that an entity need not provide in the financial statements, ncluding the notes, s specific disclosure required by an IFRS if the information resulting
from that dwclosure 14 nol matenial and also clanfies that sdduional disckisures may be necessary if the nformation required by IFRSs 15 nat sufficient for an understanding of
the impact of particular transactions and events on the entity’s fnancial position and performance.
“The Line tema Listed in 1AS L for the bulunce sheet and the statement of profit or loss should be disuggegated of this 1 refevant to an undastanding of the anuty's inancul
pesition and sdditional guidance on the wic of subtotals 18 provided In the statement of comp he share of the other comprehensive income of equity-
accounted associates and jomnt ventures should be presentiad m aggregate a3 a single line item. classified between those items thut wall or wall not be subsequently rechassified
1o profit or loss and when determining a sy appraach to p g notes. the entity should consider the understand ability and comparability of its financial
statements

olthe had a0 1ntpact un the Company s financial statements

IAS 27, Equity Scparate Financlal

The amendment allows entities 1o use the equity methed to sceount fur investments 1n subsidiariea, joint ventures and associates in thewr separate finanvial statements and
clanfies the defintion of separate financial statements. In particular, separate linancial statements are those presented in addition 1o consolidated financiel statements or in
addition to the financial statements of an investor that does not have i in suhsidi but has 10 assocrales or jomt ventures which are requced by [IAS
28 *[nvestments in Assoctates and Jount Ventures® 1o he accounted for using the equaty method

: plion of the had no impact on the Company’s financial statements
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.

Notes to the Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016
{amounts in EUR)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28, Amendments-Invesiment Entities: Applying the Consulidation Exception
The amendments clanify the upplication of the consulidetion exception for the subsidiaries of i stment it
The adoption of the amendments had no impact on the Company’s financial statements

Aesual Improvements to [FRSs 2010-2012 Cyele
The amendments introduce key changs to seven TFRSs following the publication of the results of the IASH's 2010412 exvele of the annual improvements praject. The topies

addressed by these amendments are vet out below
~IFRS 2 “Share-based Payinent’ The tenms ‘performance condition” and *service condition” are separately defined.

+JFRS 3 ‘Business C " Tt s clanfied the i d m a busmess that 13 not classified as equity, whether or not it falls witun the scope
af 1AS 39 {or [FRS 9 ance adopted), 15 subsequently measured at fair value at each reportng dale, with changes in fair value recognuzed in profil of boss.

+ IFRS 8 "Operaling Segment” Disclosire of the made by n epetaling scgmenis s required, m.Mmg a a:mwm of the segnients
aggregated and the economc indicators assessed 1a determining that the sggregated scgments share sumalar of segment
assets Lo the entity’s Lota] assets 13 requinad if the reconciliation is reported to the chiel operating deciston maker,

< [FRS 13 "Fair Value Measurement’ It is clanfied that short-term receivables and payables with no stated interest rates can be held at mvoice amounts when the elfect of
discounting is immaterial,

« IAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment' Tt is clarified how the gross canrving amount and the accumulated depreciation an: treated where an entity uses the revaluation
model,

+ 1AS 24 *Related Party Disclosures™ 1t i clanified that an entity that provides key smanagement personncl scrvices to the reporting entity of 1o 13 pareat (the management
entity) is a related party 10 the repertng entity and the amounts charged to it for services provided should be disclosed, and

+JAS 38 ‘Tntzngible Assets’ 1t 15 clanfied how the gross carmying amount and the sccumulsted amontization are treated where an entity uses the revaliation model

e adoption of the smendments had o impact an the Companys financial statements

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

“The amendments itreduce key changes to four [FRSs following the publication of the results of the IASB's 2012-14 eycle of the annual improvements project The topes

addressed by these amendments ane set out below

= [FRS § “Nonscuirent assets held for sale and dhscontinued operations’ 1 is clanfied that, when an asset (or disposal group) is reclassified from “held for sale’ to *held for

distribution’, of viee versa, this does pot canstitute a change 10 4 plan of sale or distobution, &nd does nol have (o be accounted for as such. Therelore the asset (or dispasal

group) dows fot peed Lo be reinstated 1n the financial statements, as il 1t had never buen classified as “held for sale” or “held for distribution’, simply hecause the manner of

disposal has changed,

« IFRS 7 “Financaal instruments™ Specific gindance 15 added to help management determine whether the fermis of an armangement 1o senice a financial asset which has been
1 constitute i ol it It iz also clanfied that the addibonal disclosure required by the amendments to IFRS 7. ‘Dhsclosure-Otfsetting financial asscts

and financial lishilities® 18 not specifically required for all interim periods. unless required by IAS 34 *Intenm financial reporting .

* IAS 19 ‘Employes henelits™ When deternining the diseount rate for postemploynient benefil obligations, it is the cumency that the habihitics are deneminated in that is

mportant, and not the country where they anse; and

+IAS 34 Inlmm financial reporting™ 1 1s clarilied that the reference in the standand Lo “information disclosed elsewhere in the intenm financial report’ means some olber

or nsk report) that is available W users of the financial stalements at the same fime as the interim financaal satements, requinng a

cross~reference from the munm financial statements to the location of that infurmation

The adoption of the emendments had oo mpact on the Company’s financial statements
New standards, amendments to standards sad interpretations pot yet adopted by the Company

A nmber of new standards, amendments to existing standards and inlerpretations are effective afler 2016, as they have not yet been endorsed by the Furapean Unton or have
not been early applied by the Company These that may be relevant to the Company ane set out below

1AS 7, Amendmeat-Disclosure Initiative (cffective 1 January 2017, not yet endarsed by EU)

The dment requires disclosure of information ensbling wsers of financial slatements to evaluate changes in lbilities arising from financing activitics, including both
changes fiom cash lows and nunmcash changes. The disclosure njuinements also opply to changes in financial assets, such a3 assets that hedge linbiliies arising fom
financing activities, if cash flows from those financial assets were or future cash flows will be, mclided i cash flows from finzncing sctivitics

‘e adaption of the amendmunt 13 not expected o impact the Company's financial statements

Classification zad measurement
TFRS 9, Financial Instruments (effective | January 2018)

I July 2014, the IASD published the final version of [FRS 9 Financit Instruments” whish ieplaces [AS 39 “Financil | K ition and M ' IFRS 9
includes revised the and of fimancial assets and babilitics, impairment of financial axsets and hedge accomting

IFRS 9 apphes a new classification and measurement approach for all types of financul assety that reflects the enlity’s busmess model for managing the assets and ther
contractual cash fow charactenstics 1FRS 9 requires finencial sssets t be classified into one of the following meastmement categories amortzed cost, faur value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCT) or far value through profit or loss (FVTPL) The standard ehmwates the exsting 1AS 39 categones of heldatosaturity, Joans and
receivables and available (or sale

Fimncial assets will be measwed at amortezed cost if they are held wathin a business model whose objective 15 to hold financial assets in order to collect coatractual cash
flows, end thar contractual cush flows represent solcly payments of principle and micrest (SPPI) Financial msscts will be icasured at FVOCT of they are held wathin &
business model whose objective 1 schieved by both collecting evntractual cash liows and selling financial avsets and ther contractual cash [haws represent solely payments of
prineiple and interest All other financial axsets will be classified at FVTPL.

An entity may at initial recognition, designate a financial asset at FVTPL if duing 5o el or i v reduces an mismatch. Furths . o initial
recognitivn of an equity nstrument that is awt held for wading, an entity may imevocably elect to present subsequent changes 1 Lur value i OCT This election 18 made on an
investmenkby-investment basis

Under [FRS 9, embedded derivatives in contracts where the hust is a finanaial asset in the scope of the standand are no longer bifurcated. Instead, the hyvbrd financial
mstrument 1s assessed for classification as a whole

IFRS 9 retains most of the existing requirements for financial lisbilities However, for financial lisbilities designated st FVIPL, gaing or losses attnbutable lo changes i own
credit nsk shall be presented 1n OCH and shall pot be subseyuently transferred 1o profit or loss unless such a presentation would create or enlarge an accountimg mismatch
Under TAS 39, al) fair value chunges of habiitics desi 9 FVTPL are ized in profit of loas unless this would creste or enlarge an accounting mismatch

Business model assessment

The business model reflects how the Company manages the assets in order to generate cash fluws That is, whether the Company’s objective 15 solely to eollect contractual
cash flows from the assct. (o reslize cash flows from the sale of asscts. or both o colleet contractual cash flows and cash Aows from the sale of asscls Financial asscts that arc
held for trading or that arc managed on a fr value basis will be measured al FVTPL

‘The Company’s appruach is o perform the busmess model assessment consistently with 1ts operatng model and the it provided to key personnel. [n
makmg the abuve assessment the Company wall consider a number of factors inchuding

= the stated policies and objectives for each patfolio,

« how the performance of each portfolio i evaluated and reported.

 the risks assocrated with the performance of the business model and how those nsks sre managed,

+ how managas are compensated, and

 past expenence on how the cash flows from those portioling were collected. expectations about future sales sctivity and how the Company’s stated objective for managing the
tinancial assets 19 achieved
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.

Notes to the Financial Stalements as at December 31, 2016
{amounts m EUR})

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cuntinued)

SPPI assessment

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principle and interest, the Company will cansider whether the contractual terms of the instrument arc
conaivent with a basic leading amangement i ¢ inferest includes only consideration for the ime valuc of money, credit nuk, other basic lending ks 2nd a profit margin. This
will include an assessment of whether a financial asscl conlains a contractual term that could change the amount or tmmung of contractual cash fows i a way that it would not
be consistent with the above condition. Where the contractual terms miroduce exposure 1o nisk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending amangement, the related
fizancial usset will be measured at FVTPL

Preliminary assessment .«ycl-.ngn to the clossification ard measnrenient

“The Company conducted a p ¥ highdevel of passible changes to the class i and of its portfolios based on tls Ssting busmess models
as at 31 December 2016. Thn (‘ompam s current expectation uth-l

* loans and advances to banks und customers that are classificd as loans and recervables and measured at amortzed cost under IAS 39 would also be measured at amonized
«cost under [FRS 9,

* held-lo-matunty mvestment secunties measured at amortized cost umder IAS 39 would i general also be measwred at amortizad cost under IFRS 9.

= debl secunties classified as aveilable-forssale under IAS 39, may under IFRS 9 be measured at amortized cost or FVOC] depeuling on the business model within which they
are held,

* assets in the debt securities Jending portfolio (see note 26) that are measured at amortized cost wder LAS 39, may under [FRS 9 be measurad of amortized cost o FYOCT
depending on the busincss model within which they are held,

*» debl secunties that are measured at FYVTPL under IAS 39 would i general continue to be measured at FVTPL under IFRS 9,

= trading asscls and demvative assets that are measured al FYTPL under 1AS 39 would also be measured at FVTPL under IFRS 9. and

* eouity securities clasatied as available-forsale under IAS 39 would generally be measured at FVTPL under IFRS 9.

The ab ! and ‘may not be fully representative of the impact on the Company’s financial statements as at | Jamuary 2018 becayse IFRS
9 requires the business mode] assessment W e made based o the facts and circumstances that exist at the date of initial apphcation. Moreover, the Company's preliminay
assessment has nol included a detailed review of the contractual terms. of all the financial assets whuch 15 1n progress

The final impact will depend on the structure of the Company’s portiolias on inisial application, which may not be the same as at 31 December 2016

Impairment of financial aascts

IFRS 9 introduces an expeeted credit loas (ECL) model that replaces the incwred loss model in IAS 39 The new requirements clumnate the threshold m [AS 39 that requaed

a credil event to have occurred before credit losses were recognized and will apply 1o a broader population of financial instruments campared to IAS 39 The measurement of

ECL wll require the use ol complex models and significant judgment about tisture economic conditions and credit behavior,

Tl\:m\\ smpaurment model will apply Lo financial sssels that are nol measured al FVTPL. including loans. lease receivables, debt secunties, financul guaraniee contracts and
issucd. No impail Toss will be ired on equity investments

Ihe pew stundard uses a “three stage approach” that wall reflect changes in aredit quality sinee inital recognition. Al each repating dale. a losa allowance equal W 1 2-munth

ECL will be recognized for debt investment securities that are determined 1o have a low credit sk at the reporting date, und for all other financial assets for wiuch there is no

significant increase i credit nisk swee imtial recognition L 2«month ECL are the portion of ECL that result from default events that are posuible within the next 12 months

after the reporting date For financial assels that have experienced a significant increase in credit nsk since initial recognition where no specific loss cvent has been identified,

a lo3s allowance equal to lifetime expected credit Josses will be recognized  The loss allowanee for purchased or originated credit impatred linancial assets wall always be

measured at an amount equal to lifeume ECL. Funancial assets where 12-menth ECL are recugnized ane conswlered t be in “stage-1"; financial assets which have expernienced

a sigmificant increase in credht nsk are n ‘stage-2" and financial assets that are credit impaired are in *stage3’

The measurement of expeeted eredit hmﬂ will be & probabihity-weighted wcmgl. amount that will reflect thl: me value of money In measurmg FCL, information about past
events, current conditions and le and supportable forecasts of Ruture should b d The now model 15 expocted to rosult in a higher loss
allvwance for the Company compared to [AS 39

The mplementation of IFRS9 is not expecied to have a sigmilicant impact on the Company”s linanaul statements. since any addilional impaments are o be bume by the
3 {other Furohank Group entities, see Note 7 for more detals)

Transition

“The new requirements of IFRS 9 will be applied retrospectively by adjustmg the Company's balance sheet on the date of transition on | January 2015 The Company intends
W apply the exemplion pod W restale comparalive figwes Tor pror peneds, therefine the Company s 2017 comparatives will be presented on an IAS 39 bas

Moreover. the following assessments will have o be made on the basis of facts and circumstances that exist at the date of inital application

« the determination of the busmess model n1|hm which a financial asset 15 held,

*the d and 2 ! previous of certum financial assets and habibiies as measured ot FVTPL, and

- the of certain in equity 4 not held-for-trading as at FVOCT

Amnnual Improvements tn IFRSs 20142016 Cycle (effective 1 January 2017 and 1 January 2018, sot yet endorsed by EU)

The amendments introduce key changes 1o two [FRSs following the publication of the resulls of the IASB's 2014216 cycle of the annual improvements project. The topics
adidressed by these amendments are set out below

+1FRS 12 ‘Disclosure of Interests in Other Entiies 1t s clanficd thal the disclostre requirements mn IFRS 12 apply 1o an entity’s intetest n a subsidiary, a joint venture of an
associate classified as held for zale except for the for d financial The & apphes for anul penods beginning on ot after 1
January 2017, and

= IAS 28 ‘Investments in Assoviates and Joint Ventures™ It 1s clarifivd that veniure capilal organizations, mutual funds, unit trasts and similar entities are allowed 1o clect
measunng Urar investments in associates of joint ventures at (au vatue through profit or loss The amendment applies for annual peniods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
“The adoption of the amendments 13 nut expected 1o impact the Company's financial stalements

IFRIC 22, Foreiga Currency Transactions and Advance Cunsideration (effective 1 Junuary 2018, not yet endorsed by EU)
IFRIC 22 provides requirements about which exchange rate to use 1n reporting forcagn currency transactioas that imvolve an advance payment ar recept. The interpretabion
clarifics that in this case., the date of the transactian for the purposc of delermining the exchange rate to use on mitial recognition of the related aaset, expense or income is the
date of the advance consideration, i< when the entity inatially ired the ctary asset {prep asset) o ctary liability {deferred income hability)
ansing from the advance consideration. [1 there are muliple payments or receipts in advance, the mmy must defermine a date of transaction for cach payment of recapt

The sdoption of the interpretation 13 not expected 1 impact the Company 's fmancial statements.

The financial statements are prepared under the hustorical cost convention as mudified by the revaluation of availableforssale financial asscts and of financial assels and
financial liabilities (mcluding derivative mmnlnu'u) at fair-value-through-profi-or-loss.

The ion of financial formity with IFRS requues the use of estimates and assumpuons that affect the reported amounts of assels and Labilities and
dhsclosure of contngent hubililies at Ih:lhl.: of the financial statements, as well as the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period  Although these
estimates ere based on management's best knowledge of cusrent events and actions, actua] results ultimately may differ from those estimates

The Company's presentation currency 1s the Furo (€) being the functional currency of the parent company
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.

Notes to the Financial Statements a3 at December 31, 2016
(amounts m EUR )

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Golng concern

Ihe sceompanying financial statements have been preparad based on the gung convern principle. which assumes that the Company will continue o operate in the foresecable
future In order 1o assess the bility of this the reviews the forecasts of the future cash inflows

The Company recorded lingnang only from reluted parties, therefore, it going coneern depends of the fsture continuation of these relations

“Ihe Board of Directors, taking into consideration the factors mentioned i the Report of the board of Managing Dhrectors, have been satistied that the financial statements of
the Campany can be prepared on a going concem basis

Fusctional and presentation currency
“The Company’s presentation cmency, is the Euro (EUR) being the Rmctional curmency of the parent company

Fareign currency

“Transactions in forcign cuwmencics are trunslated into Euro at the forcign exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and labililies stated in foreign
currenciv at the balance sheet date are translated into Euro at the forcign exchange rate prevailing at that dste Foreipn exchange differenves arising on translation ate
recognized i the Lncome Statement

Noremonetary assets and lbilities 1n foreign currencies, which are stated at histoncal cost, are translated into Euro at the foreign exchange rate prevailing at the dste of the
transaction, 1n the Halance Sheel Any resulling movement is also recognized in the Tncome Slatement

Income tax

Income tax on the profit or loss fur the vear comprises currenl lux Cunent tax s the expectad tax pavable based on the lanable profit for the vear, using tax rales enacted or
substantially prevailing at the balance shieet date. Taxable profit may differ from profit as reported an the Income Statement because it excludes tlems of mcome or expense that
are taxable or deductible in othea years and it fathes excldes items that are never taxable or deducnble

Deferred tux

Deterred mcome tax 18 provided in full, using the babilty method, on temporary differences ansing between the 1ax bases of assets and hahiliies and their camying amounts in
the financial statements

Deferred income 1ax 13 determined using tax mtes (and laws) that have been enacted or substansially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected 10 apply when the
related deferred income tax assets 1s realized or the deferred meome tax bability 15 scitled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized 1o the extent that it s probable tha future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary dfTerences can be utilized

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilitics are recogmzed on the Company's balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the coniractual provisions of the investment. As
at December 31, 2016, the Company did nol conclude any denvative contracts. A financial avset 1s derecopnized when the contractual cash flows of the loan expire, o the
Cuompany transfers ity nights to recerve these cash flows in an outnght sale in which substantially all the nsk and rewards of ownership have been transferred

Loans and receivables

These represent Losans and Advances 10 customer, and are messured at iniial recognition at faur value and are subsequently measured al amoriized cost using the effective
interest rate method i for esumatad ble amounts are } m the Income Statement when there 15 olyective evidence that the assel is
impaired

“The nominal or cost value of the other recenvables, which are pot traded n sctive markets or for which no valuation techniques van be applicd is 2sstimed (0 approximate therr
fair value

Share capital
Share capital 15 equal to the nominal value of shares, respectively with to the value of capital contribubion, of premmum and incorporated reserves or other operations which
lead to s modification. Subscribed and paidein capital is recorded based on the articles of incorparation. and un the supperting documents regarding capital paid-m
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING Il B.V.

Nates to the Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016
(amounts m EUR)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cashand cash eq\m:la\.llmpiucudum hand and demand Jeposits, and other shortstenn highly liguid mvestments that are readily comertible to @ known amount of cash
bect to an nsk ges in value

Impairment

For finuncial assets that are not camed at fax value through profit or loss, the Company assessed at each batance sheet date whether there i3 objective evidence that a financial
asset ar group of financial adsets 13 imparred A financial assel or @ group of (inancial assets is impawed and impaiment losses are meurred if there is ohjective evidence of
impatrment as a restilt of one or more events that occurred afler the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss cvent”) and that loss event (ar events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assel ot group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated

Impainment indicators
For the Compamy s Retail loan exposuses, objective evidence that a loan or group of foans is impaired ineludes ohsenable data that comes to the attention of the Conipany
about the followmng loss cvents-

(@) significant financial difficulty of the cbligor. a sigmificant reduction of personal and/or family income or loss of job,

{b) a Jetault or breach of contract,

{c) significant changes in the performance and behavior of the bonower (fw example, a oumber of delayed contactual payments)

{(d) measurable decrease in the estimated fature cash flows from a group of (inancial assets through a negative pavment pattern such as missed paymients.

() the Company granting to the borrower, for counomic or legal reasons relating Lo the borrower’s financial difliculty, a coneession thal the lender would ol otherwse
consider, such as a reduction of the obligors monthly nstallment for a specific panod of time, or 3 temporary or permanent teduction of nlerest fate;

(D)1t 1s becoming probable that the borrower will enter ito bankruptey status or other linancial reorganwzation,

) loss events that could aifect the ability of the borrower to repay contractusl obligations within the agreed time, such as

= serious iliness or disability of the ebliger or a farmly membea,

= death of the borrower,

For all other tinancial asscts including corporate loan exposurey. the Company asscsses o a cases by=casce basis at each reporting date whether there 1s amy obyective evidenee
of mpainment using the following enteria

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issucr or obligor,

(b} a default of brasch of contract;

(€) significant changes in the financial performance of the borrower that affeet the borrower s ability to meet its debt obligations, such as

~operating losses.
~working capital deficiencies,

=the barrower having a negative

{d)other facts indicating a ion of the financial of the borrower, such as a breach of loan covenants of other temms, of a partial wiite-ofl i the bommower s
obhgations due to economic or legal reasons reluting W hus finencial status,

() significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation,

() the Company granting 10 the borrower, for economic or legel reasons relating to the bomower's financial difficulty, 3 concession that the lender would not otherwise
consder, such as

a reduction of the obligors monthly installment fit a speaific paiod of ume, or a lemporary or permanent reduction of interest rte;

(g) becoming. yaubu'bh that the borrower will enter imto bankrupley or other financial reorganization;,

(h) signifl intheb s industrv or geographical arca that could affect the borrower's ability to mevt its debt obligations,
(1) matket related ;nrnmmm qnchlslulg the status of the borrower’s other debt ubligativns,
1) & sigruficant downgrade in the internal or external credit rating of the borrower”s finaneial when dered with other infonmat
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING I B.V.

Notes to the Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016
(amounts m EUR}

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Assets carried at @nornzed cost

Imparmuent assessment

“The Company first asscxses whether objective evidence of impairment eists individually for financial assets that are indnidually significant. and individually or collectively
for financial assets that are not individwally significant 17 the Company determines that no objeetive cvidence u(mmumuu exists for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit rsk ly assesses them for Assets that
are dally assessed for i and for which an lass is or continues mbemngmndmmwludad in a collective assessment of impairment.

In determining whether a loan 13 individually significant for the purposcs of assessing inpaument. the Company conaders a number of {actors, including the importance of the
indsvidual Toan relstionship and bow it is managed, the swe of the loan, and the product hine Consequently, loans to corporate chents and financial institutions as well as
mvestment securitics, ere generally considensd as individually significant. Retail lending portfolios are generally assessed for impaisment en a collective busis as they connst
of Large homogenous portfolios, white exposures that are managed on an individual basis e assessed individually for uupairment.

“The Compary assesses 3t cach balance sheet date whether there 15 an objechive evidence of impairment

Interest=bearing borrowings

1 1-be ngs arc mitially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective mtercst method Applving the effective
interes! m.-ﬂwd the enfify amortizes any fees, transaction cost and other premiums or discounts included in the caleulation of the effective interest rate over the expected life of
the ving babilty Any such izativn would be recognized in the Income Statement.

De-recognution of financial habuilities

A financial hability is derecognized when the obligation under the liabifity 15 dischurged, cancelled or expires. When an existing financial habihity of the Company 13 replaced
by znother fiom the seme counterparty on substantially Jilferent terms, of the tams of an existing liabality wre substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated a¢ an extungwshment of the onginal hability and the recogrition of a new liability The difference in the respective camang amounts is recognized in the mcome
staement

The Company considers the terins to be substantially different, if the discounted present value of the cash (lows under the pew terms, including amy fees paid net of any fees
received and discounted using the oniginal clfective interest rate, is ot least 10% different from the discountal present value of the remaining eash flows of the vngimal
financtal hibility

Other payables

Other payables are recognized initially at fr valne The nomuns! or cost value of the ofher payables, which are nof traded in active markets or for which no valustion
techniques can be applied is assumed to approvamate their far value. Other payables arc subsequently stated at amortized cost Other payable are classified as current
luabilitics, unless the Company has indisputable right to pastpone the scttlement of obligations for at least |2 manths after the balance shoet date
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.

Notes to the Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016
(amounts i EUR)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

“The Cash Flow stawment has been prepared in sceondance with the mdinect metbod The presentation for the vear 2016 has not chunged 1n companson for the year 2015

PRINCIPLES OF DETERMINATION OF RESULT

General

Result is determined as the difference between income generated by luans and the vusts and other churges for the year Incume from transactions 13 recognized in the vear m
which it 15 realized

Interest lacome and expenses

Intercst income and inlerest expense arc recognized in the Income Statement for all interest bearing financual instruments

For all imterest beanng financial instruments, inferest mcome o misrest expense i Tecopnwred using the effective wnlerest rate, which 13 the rate thal exadtly discounts
estumated future cash payments or receipts through the expected lile of the finencial mstrument or & shorter penod, where sppropriate. to the net camung amount of the
financial assct or financial hiability (on an amortised cost basis) The caleulation includes all contractual terms of the financial mstrument (for example, prepayment oplons)
but not [uture credit fosses The ealeulation inchades all fees and pomis pawd or received between parties to the contract thal are an wiepral part of the ellective mlerest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts

Fees and C generally recognized on an acerual basis when the scrvice has been provided
Exchange rate differences

Fchange rate diffirences ansing upon the settlement of monctary ttema arc recognized i the Profitél.0ss Account in the periend that they anse
Exch. te d| L and habilitics Joans are d 1n the Profit & Loss Account in the pened they anse

Tazation

Demetie eorporate income tax 14 determinel by applymg Duteh fiscal practive nules and taking into accoint allowshle deductions, charges and excriphons
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V,

Notes to the Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016
{amounts in EUR)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

“The Company's activities expose il 1o @ vanely ol rishs. Exposure Lo credit, interest rate, cwrency and liqusdity risk anses in the normul course of the Company’s business. The
Cempany's overall sk management policy focus on the unpredictability of finencial markets and seck to minimize potenbial adverse effects on its financial performance

The management conswlers there is no sigmificant coneentration of the following nsks at the halance sheet date
The procedures for assesying the risk ure also shown below:

Credit risk

Credit isk 15 the nsk of financial Joss 10 the Company if a customer of counterparty to a financul instrument fails to mect its
from the loans and advances (o customers.

For credit risk management reporting purposes, the Company considers and consolidates all clements of credit risk expostre {such as indnidual obhgor risk. sector nsk,
tepayment niak, efc )

. and arises |

‘The Company’s portfolio 13 reviewed on a regular basis for impairment provisions. There is a limited recowrse through the Overdrall Muliicurrency Agreement between the
Company (Borrower) and Furohank Cyprus 14d (Lender), which stales that the aggregate loss acerued by the Company (Harrower) in relation o 1ts creditors defauluing under
comesponding loans will not execed the lower of Eiiro 2,000 000 or, 1% (ane percent) of the outstanding amounts of vorresponding loans, calculated before tax and over the
total term of the agrecment

Loans and advances.

Loans and advances are net of provisions for impairment The estimated faxr value of loans and advances reprosents the discounted amount of estimated future cash flows
expeted 10 be received Expected cash flows are discounted at cument market rates to determune fair value

“The Compatty takes on exposure 1o credit nsk, which 1s the risk that a counterparty will be unable t pay smounts in full when due
Impagmient provisions are provided whene there 13 objeetive evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due

Significant changes in the coomomy., of in the health of a particular industry segment that represents a eoncentration in the Company's portfolio, could result in evidence that1s
different from (hose provided for at the balance sheot date Management therefore carefully manages its exposure to credit nsk

Exposure to credit nsk is managed through regular analvsis of the abulity of borrowers to meet intesest and capital repavinent obligations

Exposute 1o credit nsk is also managed in part by obtaining collataral and corporate and personal guarantees The sphit of purtfolio of the Compuny by industry is detarled 1n
below

‘The Company has no geographical exposure (o markets other than Romania.

Credic i

The Company is aware of the state of the borrower's business and any change i its creditwortiuness at all times, as regular evaluation of financual statements and of the
borrower's business operations are peformed
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.

Notes to the Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016

{amounts m EUR)

Credit risk (cuntinucd)

S . X
There are on the v of cash and cash equivalents. These are readily available
Collpiergl
‘The Compuny emplays & mngc ol pahucs and practices to mitigate credit ik The most traditional of these 13 taking of secunity For funds advances. which 1% a common
practice The Campany iy en the acceptability of specific classes of collateral ar credit nsk mitgation The principal collateral types for loans and
advances are

- Mortgages aver residential properties,
= Charges over business assets such as preniises, inventory and accounts receivable

Longer-term finance and lending o corporate entibies are generally secured. mortgage loany arc also secured, while consumer kuns lo mdividusls are generally unsecured In
addition, in order to manimize the aedit loss the Company will seek additional collateral from the counterparty as soon as inpainuent indicators are noticed far the relevant
indivadual Toans and advances

- 10 credit risk before collateral held or other credit enbancements:

31-12-2016

Loans & advances to customers - prncipal vutstanding® 295,704,960
Interest recenvable 12,011,485
Onher recevables related to loanssmenthly admunistration focs 1,178,908
Less allowanee for impawment =2.000.000
Net Loans and advances ta customers 306,895,353
Orher recevables (Note 8) 4119.547
Cash and cash eguivalents 6,640,175
Tutal 317,655,075
—_umons
loens & advances ta customeny - principal outstanding® 314,038,630
Intenest secenable 20.587.386
Other bles related to | ihly fecs 3,232976
Less: allowance for impaimment 2000000
Net Loans and advances to customers 335458992
Other revavables (Note 8) 1371 482
Cash and cash equivalents 244,566

Total H3IATS,040
e

(%) Loans and advances to customers are afler any wrile downs performed duc to miled recounse agamnst burrowangs, which for 2016 18 Furo 18 073 114 and for 2015 is Furo
13 266 904

This wnte down is counterhalanced by the wiite-down of financng hormowings from Group company for the same amount (refer 1o note 11)
Loans end advances

Asat December 31, 2016 and 2013, loans and advances are summarized as follows

31122006 _ 12312018
Neuther past due nor impairsd 114,453,322 133,583,380
Past due but not impaired 38,145,262 46,687,881
Imparred - indnvadually asseased 82,534,493 38,904,766
Impasred - collectively assesscd 72962275 118682965
Gross Loans and advances to Customers 308,595,352 337,858,992
Less Allowance for mparment =2.000.000 =2.000.000
Net Loans and advances o customers 306,895,352 335,858,992
Impaimments not vel charged under the limited recourse guarentee with Gurobank Cyprus 11d° (17,733,038) (26.521,945)
Net loans and sdvances afier impairments 289,162,314 309,337,047

*}Loan 2nd advances to customers are to be written down by this amount i the futnre against berrowings, due to kmited recourse guarantee (see note 11)

Page 18

PricewaterhouseCoapers




ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.

Notes to the Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016
(amounts in EUR)

5.1, Credit risk (continued)

512 Loans and advances (comtinued)

The wholesale and small busmess loans as at 31 December 2016 are covered by colloterals at 110% and ¥1%, respectively (2015 100% and 87%, respectively). Consumer
loans are not collaterahzed. Mortgage loans are collateralized at 100% (2015 95%)

Credit quality of loans and advances ta customers

Leans and advances to customery are classified as “neither past due nor impaared”, “past due but not unpawred” and “impaired”

Leans are reported as “neither past due nor impaired” when no contractual payments are in arvears and there are no other indications of impairment

“Past due bul not impared” category includes loans with contractual pavments overdue by at least one day, but which arc nol impayred unless specific mformation indwcates to
the contrury Thas is typically when logns 2 in aircars less than %0 duys past duc fur consumer and small business expusurcs, and loss than 190 days pust duc for morgage
and wholesale exposires For loans in this calegery, although not considered impaired, the Company may recognize an impaitment provision

“Impaired” loans that are indnvidually assessed comprise wholesale exposures as well as small business loans which carry an mdividual impaiment provision. Al ether retail
impaired cxposurcs cary & collective inpaimment provision

The evidence considerad by the Company m d that there 13 oby of amp 15 setout 1a Note 2 [mp

The tables below present the total gross emount, representing the maxamum exposurc 1o credit risk gross of imparment allowance, of loans and advances that are classifiad as
non impaed (i ¢ “nether past due nor impuired” and “past due but nol umpaired”) and those classified as impaired

(@) Loans und advances neither past duc nor impaired

The credit quahity of the portfolio of loans and advances that were neither past due nor impaired at 31 December 2016 and 2015 was assessed by reference 0 the aty's own
standard grading system The following information ix based on that system

311272016 311272018

Acceptables Jow nsk 114,453,322 133,583,380
Total lll.-k‘!;E 133,583,380
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING I B.V.

Notes to the Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016
{amounts m EUR)
5.1 Credit risk (continued)
5.1.2. Loans and advances (continucd)

(b Loans and advances past due, hut pot imparred

_ Comumer _ Mortgspe  _Smallbwiness  Wholewsle V122016
Cument
Past due up to 29 days 4,519,880 24,832,410 286,910 - 29,639.200
Past due 30« 89 days 1220152 7837946 192221 = 9250320
Past due 90 - 180 days - 55,743 & & 55,743
Past due more than 180 days - = 3 5 4
Total 5,740,033 3272609 479,131 - 38,945,263
Fair value of collateral - 25,630,526 473,784 - 26,104,309

Consumer Mortgage Small business Wholesale 317122015

Cument
Past due up to 29 dayx 7491364 27.069.550 395,526 - 34956440
Past due 30 - 8Y days 1.879.962 9429666 421813 - 11731441
Past dug %0 - 180 dns. - - - = -
Past due more than 180 days - - = 5
Total 9371326 36479218 817339 - 46,657 8Y
Fair value of collateral - 29,267,241 TI.691 - 29,038,931

i} Impaired loans and advances
(c1) Impaired loans and advorces collectively assessed

For collectively assessed accounts, loans are treated 2s impaned based on ustoncal loss duta for groups of loans with sumilar charactenstics. The collectively assessed loans
and advances Lo customers Ielore taking ity connderstion the cash flows Gom collateral beld s presented below

31122016
Consumer Mortgage Small Business Total
Callectivly assessal loans 3,907,451 50,200,660 18854164 72962275
Fair value of collatcral - 37020823 16.504.443 53,525,266,
31122018
Consumer Mortgage Small Business Total
Cotlectivey asseswad foans 34,086,202 53,747,632 30,849,041 118,682,963
Fair value of collateral - 37,510,211 21,829,061 59,339,273

2
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.

Notes to the Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016
(amounts n ELUR)

Credit risk (cuntioucd)

Loans and advences (continucd)

(c2y Impaired ioans and advances individuglly assessed

For indrvidually assessed accounts, loans are reated as impaired as soon ax here 1 ohjective evidence that an impawrment loss has been incurred The erilena used by the
Company to deternyine that there is objective evidence of impaiment include

= known cash flow dilficullics experienced by the barrower,

— overdue cuntractual paymients of enther prncipal or inlerest,

=breach of luan covenants o conditions,

= he probabulity that the berrower will cter bankrupiey or other financial reorgantzation,

= a downgrading in credit rating by an external credit rating ageney

Dusing 2016 the tggets and el: of exposures has b d following of EBA concepls and categorics regarding nonmperforming and
forbomne loans which had an effect on the assessment of the small busmess loans

‘The individually assessed loans and ady t before taking & the cash flows from collataal held 15 presented below The breakdown of the gross
emunt of individually assessed loans and advances by clsses is

2016
Mbortgage Small business Wholesale Total
Individually asscased loans - - 82,534,493 42,534,493
Fair value of collateral - - 87,221,427 §7,221,427|
3171220158
Mortgage Small business Wholesale Tatal
Individually asscased loans - - 38.904.766 39.904.766
Fair valuc of cullateral - - 41,541,734 ALH41,734]

(d) Repossessed coliaterals

Drang 2009, the Company has repossesed collaterals amounting to EUR 104 thonsand through his agent assignad for the adnunustration of these loans, Bancpost § A, These
eollaterals are recorded in the agent's hooks until the Company instriicts otherwise. Unlil such time, the Company recogmzed  roceivable from its sgent (at the suction value
of the collateral), m dence: with a reduction of the I b

During 20102016 there were no repossesed collateral
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.

Nates to the Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016
{amounts m EUR)

S.1. Credit risk (continued)

511 Loens and advances (continued)

Lot G of gredit pisk cxposure

Geographical Sector
The following table breaks down the Company's main credit exposure at their gross carrying amounts, as categorized by the geograplieal sectors of our counterpartics

311212016
Loans and advances to customers
Caonsumer 23.126.158
Mortgage 180,305,940
Small businesses 22,928,760
Wholcsale 82,534,490
Cash and cash equivalents 6.640,175
Onher Assets 1,619,547
Tatal 317,155,070
Jinanos
Loans and advances to customers
Consumer 64,518,2°
Morgage 197,483,461
Small businesses 36,952 48T
Wheolezale 38,904,766
Cashand cash equivalents 6244560
Other Assels 1.371.483

Total M54 ﬁl
Industry sector

‘The follawing table breaks down the Company's main credit exposure at their gross cacTying amounts, as categorzed by the mdustry sectors of our counterpartics.

Commerce and Private
serviees individuals Manufacturiag Canstruction Other industrics 31122016

Luoans and advanees tu customers
= Consumer - 23,126,158 - - - 23,126,158
- Martgage - 180,305,940 - = = 180,305,940
= Small businesses 15,531,856 - 3.396,934 3,410,685 SBY,285 22,928,760
= Wholcsale 10,235,930 - 17,701 481 54,530,067 68012 82534490
Cash and cash equivalents 6,640,175 - - - - 6,640,175
Other Assels 1619547 - - - - 1619547
Total Hﬂl’;ﬁﬁ 203 4322 1!.Md15 51.940{?52 6'!'?2!’ 3I7lI55.I'W

n i
Page Pricewaterhous
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5.1, Credit risk (continucd)

5.1.2. Loens and advances (continucd)

ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.,

Notes to the Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016
{amounts m EUR)

Commerce and Private
services individualy Manufacturing Cunstruction Other industrics

Loans and advances to customers
= Consumer - GLSIBITR - - - 64518278
- Mortgage - 197483461 = . - 197,483,461
= Small busincsses 23,203,765 - 6,748,102 5.547274 1,451.346 36952 487
= Whalesale 16,450,504 - 5133335 20.169.7% 3n137 38,904,766
Cash and cash equivalents 6.244,567 - - - - 6,244,567
Onher Assets 1371483 - - - - 1,371,483
Total A1.312.319 262,001,739 11 88l£= HTI‘J% J.S&Jg .u.g?su:

4fs Fasr vale of financial assets and hiabihues

The thuee kevels of the faur value hucrarchy as at 31 December 2016 based on whether the inputs 1o the fuur values are observable or unobservable. are as follows

a) Level 1 = Financial wstiiments measwred based on quoted poces in active markets for identical financial instruments that an entify can aceess at the mevomement dale. A
market is considered active when quoted pnces are readily and regularly available from an exchange. dealer, broker, ndustry group. pucing senvice. of regulatory agency and
represent actually and regularly oceurming transactions. These include actively quoted debl instruments. cquity and denvative instruments traded on exchanges, as well as
mutial funds and unithnked product that have segularly and fiequently published quotes

b) Level 2 = Financial instruments measured wiing valuation technigques with the following inputs. 1) quoted prices for sumidar finamwial msinuaments n active markeds, 1)
quated prices for identical or similar financial instruments 1n markets (hat are nol active, i} wnputs other than quoted prices that are direvily of indirectly observable, nuamly
interest rates and vield curves chsenvable at commonly quoted mtervals, forwaid exchange rakes, equity prices, aedit spreads and unplied volauliies oblained fom
internationally recognized marked data providers and iv) may also incliade oths hecrvable inputs which are {oo the enitire fair value measurenent

€) Level 3 = Financual instnments measwred wing valustion ek with b ble inputs When developing unobservable inputs, best
available is used, meluding own data, while at the same lime market particpants' assumplions are neflected (e g assumplions about nsk) Level 3 financial instruments

include unquoted equity instruments

(@ Fair value of financial arsets and liabihties

Ihe fawr value of financial assets 13 estimated using discounted cash fow models developed weouse by the Company's management Die (o the swe ond nature of the
company, creating a soplusticated and detailed model is not feasible and therelore the madel is subject to certain hmitstions
The following table presents the carrying amounts and fir valses of financial assets and Habilities which are not camed at finr value on the balatoe shewt analysed by the
level i the Bair value huerarchy into which cach faw value measurement ix ncluded

vinns
Net carnying
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal fair value amount
Financial assets
Loans and advances W customers - - 284374019 284,374,019 306,895,353
Total financaal asscts
31/1212015
Net carrying
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total fair value amount
Financial assets
[Loanx and advanees (o customers - - 291,780,353 291,780,553 33585892
Toial financial assets
Sensinvaty emalysis on fasr valuce of financial asscis and liainlites (market mterest rate « 0.5%)
3122mM6
Net carrying
Level ) Level 2 Level 3 Total fair valuc amount
Financisl assets
|Loans and advances Lo custoners - - 250.091.041 259,091,041 306.895.353
[Fotal financial assets
Page 23
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B,V.

Notes to the Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016

(amounts m EUR)
Credit risk (contioued)
Loans and advances (continued)
The and methudol lertving the calcul of fair values of financial matruments nol camied at fur value on the balance sheet date are in line with those

used to calculate the fair values for financial instruments camied a fotr value and are as follows

Loans and advances to customers. for loans and advances to customers quoled market prices are not svailable as there are no active markels where these insiruments are
traded. The Lair valucs are csumated by discounting future cash flows over the time period they are aypected to be recoverad, using appropnale nsk-adjusted mies. Loans arc
grouped into homogenous assets with similar chatacteriatics, as momtored by Management. such as product, borrower type and delinquency status, in order 1o mprove the
aczumcy of the estimated valuation cutputs. In estimating future cash flows, the Group makes assumptions on expected prepavments, product spresds and timing of collateral
ralizstion The discount rates incorporate inputs for expeeted credit lowses and interest rates, as appropnate

For other finencial mstnanents which ere shorteterm or re-priee at frequent intervals {cash, due to banks etc), the caming smonnts represent reaseaable spproximations of fir
wvalues

The following lable presents the financial liabifites that have a short lam matunty (las thun 1 month) for which the ssumption is that the camying amount approximates
their fair value:

31122016 31122015
Carrying
smuunt Falr Value Cai ount  Fair Value

Financial labilities

Bomowings 281,595,473 281,595,473 322,304,358 322,304,358
Onher Liabiliies 1433127 7433127 3345471 3345471
Total financial liabiliaties 289,028,600 249,028,600 325,649,829 560081
Market risk

The Company Lakes on exposure to market nsk, which 13 the risk that the far value or future cash Nows of 3 financid mstrumen will Ductiute beciuse of changes i market
prices. Market risks arise from open pasitions: in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to general and specific movements and changes tn the
level of volatility of market rates of pnces such as inferest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices

Interest rate risk

The nisk that future cash flows of a financial instrument will (ludtuale hecause of changes in market interest raies. Loan assets and loan liabilities 2re undertaken hack to back
on terms that both relate W the same vanable Lunbor o Libor rate The nsk 15 fully compensatial by this balenee and hence there 1s no sensitivty risk to a change in interest
rate

Forcign exchange risk
Foreign currency risk 15 the nisk that assets or habilities in foreign eurrencies will fluctuale in value due 10 exchange rate fuctustions

Sensitivity analyss

The sensitvaty of the Incame Statement 15 the effect of the assumed changes in foreign exchanges rates on the net income for one year Senstivaty analvsis used for momtonng
market nsk do not represent worst case seenanio. The effect on the income stotement as 3 result of parallel shift in yickd cwrve is nil An analysis of the Company's sensitivity to
an 4 FX " halance shect position) is as follows

Sensunvaty of Income Statement
312016 3
gain/(less) Raini(loss)

¥omign exchange
1% depreciation of functional eurrency (UR) over foteign currencies

6,377,389
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.

Notes to the Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016
{amounts n EUR)

53 Liquidity risk

54

-

The Management considers that the hquidity nsk 1s lumited since the Group ensures availability of necded funds

‘The table below presents the cash flaw payable by the Company under linancia! liabilities by remamng contractual matuntics at the balanee sheet date The amounts

disclosed in the lable are contractual undrscomted cash Nlows

Contractual undiscounted cash flows

31122016 3122018
Up to I manth,
Borrowings lrom group companics 281,395,473 322,304,358
Interest puyable to group companies 630,282 174221
Other payables 6,802 845 3,171,250
289.028.600 325.649.829
Towl:
Harrowings from group companies 281595473 322304358
Interest payable to group companies 630,282 174221
Other payables 6.802.845 3.171.250
2R9.028.600 325.649.829
Capital management

The Company's main objectives when managing capital, 18 1o safeguand the Company’s ability to cuntnue as a going concan 3o that it can coatinte 1o provide fetums for

sharcholders and benefits for other stakeholders. The Company 1 not required ta comply with any capital requrements set by (he regulators

‘Capita] consists of 1ssued and pard up capital, share premmm and other reserves There have been no material changes in the Company’s management of capital dusing the

year.

The capital of the Compainy 13 presented below

31/1212016 JnyzeLs
Issued and paid-up capital 201006 20,000
Share premium 11980000 11,980,000
Other reserve 17,044.713 6,263,424
Total equity 29.044.713 18283424
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING 11 B.V.

Notes to the Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016
{amounts m EUR}

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect e reported amounts of assets and habilities within the next financwl year Eshmates and judgments are
coptinually evahuted and bused vn histarical experience and other factors. including expectations of futire events that are beheve 1o be reasonable under the crcumstances
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant nsk of causing a matenal sdjustment to the carrying amounts of asscts and habilities within the next financial vear are
addrezsed below

a) Imparment losses on louns and advances

The Company reviews its loan portfolios to assess impawment at least on a half yearly basis [n determimng whether an unpairment loss should be reconded i the income
statement, the Company makes judgments as to whether there 1 any vhservable data indicating that there is a measurable deerease in the estimated future cash flows from a
pertiohio of loans before the decrease can be identified with an individual loan in that portfolio. This evidence may include chservable data indicating that there has been an
adverse change ia the payment status of borrowers 1n a group, ot nabional or local eevnomie condinons that correlate wath defaults on assets i the group Management uses
estmates based on hustoncal loss nrpmmn: for assets with credit nsk l.hlmhmmes and objective evidence of unpament similar to those in the portfolio when scheduling
it future cash flows. The methodol plions used for ng both the amount and tuming of future eash Hows are reviewal regularly 1o seduce any dilferences
between hoss estimates and actusl Imi aq-mma:

An Overdrafl Multicurreney agreement dated July 11, 2008 between the Company (Homower) and Eurobank Cyprus Lid. (Lender) was concluded There ts 3 himited recourse
through the Overdraft Multicurreney Agreement which states that the agpregate loss scerued by the Company (Borrower) in relation to its creditory defaulting under
corresponding leens will not exceed the lower of Euro 2.000 000 or 19 {one per cent) of the outstanding amounts of corresponding loans. caleubsted before tax and over the
total term of the thus agresment

&) Unceriain tax posiiion

‘The Company's uncertain L2 positions are reassessed by management at the end of cach reporting period Lisbilities arc recorded for meome tax positions that are determined
by management as more likely than nol 1o result i additional taxes bang levied if the positions were t be challenged by the tax suth The is based on the
anterpretation of tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting peniod, and any known court or other nthngs on such 1ssues. Lisbibties for
penalics, nterest and taxes other than un income arc recognized based on management's best estmate of the expenditure required to serile the obligations at the end of the
reporting period

<) Deferrod income tax asset fecognition.

The recognized deferred tax assel represents income taxes recoverable throvgh future deductions from taxable profity, and 1 rveorded in the income statement. Deferred
ncume tax assets are recorded 1o the extent that realization of the related tax benefit 15 probable. The future taxable profits and the amount of tax benefits that are probable w
the future are hased oi a mediumeterm business plan prepared by management and extrapolated results thereafler The business plan is based on management expectations
that are believed to be reasonable imder the cinumistances

dy Fair value of financial assets and habibites

The far values of quoted investments in active markets are based on cuntent bid prices (financial assets) of offer prices (finsncisl babiities). If there 13 no active market for &
financial nstrument, the Company establishes fair value using valwation techmiques. These include the use of secent ami’s kength transactions, discounted cash low analysis
and other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants. The valuation models reflect current market conditions ot the measurement date which may not be
mepresentative of market conditions either before or after the measirement date: As at the balance shect date, management has reviewed its models 10 ensure they appropnately
reflect current market conditions, including the relative iqudity of the market and eredit spreads.
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING I B.V.

Notes to the Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016

{amuunis m ELR)Y
LOANS & ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
31122016 3111272018

Consumer loans* 23,120,158 61518278
Mortgage loans® 180,305,940 197.483.461
Small Business Borrowngs/ Corporate loans® 105,463,250 75.857.253
Total laans fo clients - gross® 308,895,348 337,858,002
Less: allowance for impatrment (own nsk) =2.000,000 =2,000,000

306,895,348 335,858,992
Impaimients tot yet charged under the limited recourse guarantes with Furobank Cyprus Ltd** -17.733,038 -26,521.945

289,162,310 309.337.047

*) Loans and advances to customers are afla any wiite downs peiformad due to hmited recourse sgainst bomowings, which for 2016 13 EUR 18073 114 and for 2015 1s EUR
15 266 904 This wnte down is counterbalanced by the wnite down of finanang barowings from Group Compeny for the same amoun! (refer 1o note 11}

In the second guarter of 2016, ERB New Euwrope Funding I BV completed the assi of a portfoli gross loans of EUR 26 million (EUR 26 million,
ot of i 1l whuch d significant part of consumer unsevired Joans past due more than 50 days as at 31 Devenber 2015 Overall. the transactions
resulted in & gain of EUR 10 million, that has been recognized in *Other operating income”
**)Loan and advances to cistomers are to be Writien down by this amount in the future against due 10 limited recourse g (see note 11)

311212016 31/E22018
Movement i write downs lunited recourse
Opening balance 168,204,496 152,937,592
Wnite downs performed during the year 18073114 15.266.904
Clesing halance as at year end 186,277,610 168,204,496
Current Assets: 311272016 3v08
Leen repayments due ———e
Upto 1 munth 2330343 3,120.521
1-3 months 20,932,882 6258372
4=12 munthy 42.528.049 41.184.397

66,191 274 50,563,490

3122016 3nzns
Now-Current Assets:
15 years 73,581.429 100.831.643
Over 5 yeary 167,122,648 184,463,859
240.704.077 2R5.295.502

Luens bear interest at 1 munth or 3 month Euribor/Libor plus a spread and sccording 10 the Master Recenvables Sale snd Purchase Agreements
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.

Nates to the Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016
(amounts m EUR)

7 LOANS & ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)

Movements in provisions in 2016 and 2015 for impairment of loans and interest receivable are

Cuonsumer Muttgage Small business Corparate
Type of loan loans loans loans. loans Total
Opening balance as at January 1, 2016 1,554,429 422016 23,555 - 2000000
Provision charge / nelease for the year (including collection fics) 53,764 293,688 60,076 - -
Disposal of loan portfolio - - = . S
Other movements - - - - -
Foreign exchange loss (gainy - - - - -
Closing balance as at December 31, 2016 600.665 1.315.70:4 83,631 - 2,000,000
Consumer Muongage Smial] business Corporate
Type of laan luans laans Toans foans “Fotal
Operung balance as at January 1, 2015 1,646,989 314533 IR47R - 2,000,000
Provision charge / refease for the year (including colloction focs) 02,560 107483 14,923 & 5
Dhsposal of luan portfolio - - - - -
Other movements - - - - -
Fureign exchange loss (gain) . = ” # i
Closing balance as at Devember 31, 2015 1.534, -IIL 421.% 11.5& - 2,000,000
8 OTHER RECEIVABLES

Description 3122016 31122015
Recenvable from Eurobank Cyvprus Lid. related to litigation provisions * 2,500,000 z
Receivable from repossessed collaterals 97248 97.605
Other reeeivables 11,977 9,857
Recervables fram sold luans 58,809 -
Recerveble from Eunobank Cyprus Lid 1.451 513 1,264.020

4.119.547 1.371 482
—i
* Recenvable from Furobank Cyprus L rebated to tigation provisions refates 10 a receivable due 10 the lmted recourse guarantee for provisions
regerding potential liugations (for details please refer to Note 13)

9 CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS

311272016 317522015
Due lrom banks/cunrent accounts 2,106,364 2,463,129
Due from banks/deposits placed with banks 4.533.811 3.781 438

6,640,175 &
There are no restrictions on the availability of cash and cash equivalents These are readsly available
10 EQUITY
‘The Company's suthorized share caprtal amoinis to EUR 90.000 and consists of 90 000 ordmary shares with a nominal value of EUR 1 cach
As at December 31, 2016, 20 000 sharcs were issted and fully prid-up The movements in the Equity we refer to the Statement of Equity vn page 9 of this report

ERB New Ewope Funding I BV 1 fully controlled and vwned by ERB New Europe Holding BV . a wholly owned subsidhary of Ewobunk Ergasas S A, a bank
incorporatea in Gresce and fisted on the Athens Stock Fxchange
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B,V,

Nates to the Financlal Statements s at December 31, 2016

(amounts n EUR)
BORROWINGS FROM GROUP COMPANY
31122016 Jnuols
Financing borrowings fiom Furotank Cyprus Ltd 299,608,587 391,579,170
Writedowns due tv hmited recourse agamst loans and advances lo customers =18,073.114 =£9.274 812

281,595,473 322,304,338

An Overdiaft Mulicumency Agreement dated July 11, 2008 between the Company (Bomewer) and Eurcbank Cyprus Lid. (Lender) was concluded. The attnbution of
impatrment on loaas & advaness b relates to the imp that have estimated vn the kan purtfolio Under the Ovadraft Multicurmency Agreement
the credit nsk of the portfolio exceeding IFUR 1 999 348 is bor by Eurobank Cyprus Ld , therefore this ameunt has been adjusted on the financing borrowing

According Lo the agreement the borrowings are repriced and renswed on a monthly basis. Horrowings bear interest at | moath or 3 month Evrbor/Libor plus a spread and
zecurding to the Multicumency Agreement. Based on Faality Agreement, borowings bear interest 3t Eunbor/Libor plus 3 spread for centain interest peiods of up to six
manths until they ere repriced

“The bomowings are matched with the loans and advances to customers (note 7)

INTEREST PAYABLE TO CROUP COMPANY

3171272016 311272015

Lurohank Cyprus L4d . Cyprus. 630.282 174.221
630282 174.221

Repayments are dus within | month

OTHER PAYABLES
31122016 3in2es

Payables to Bancpost S.A 3,319,907 2,081,640
Litigation pravisions * 2,500,000 -
Payables 1o Eurolife ERB Asiguran de Viala S.A 311,552 190,779
Payables to sundry lawyers 2135 2
Accrucd expenses (PWC) 50,000 30,000
Other payables 619.251 B48.808

6,802,845 3,171,250
*Liugation rebate lo p for ak " wssue (polential itigation from Romanian custuniers for loans wstially granted m the period 2000-2010)

The amount has been calculated as the present value of estimated future cash outflows Tn assessing these future cash flows, assumplions are made in respect of
uncertain matters like timing and amount i projecting cash flows and discount rates. In more dutail, most relevant factors are; number of hitgation cases expected
o be initiated, probability of loss, and average payout per htigation casc, for which histoncal data has been used as a basis for forecasts 1t s noted that any
Titigation provisions arc eovered by the limited recourse guaraniee (please refer to Note 8)

INTEREST INCOME
11631112116 VI1S31EES
Intensst income on Joans und advances 18316,607 20404777
Interest related income 2157412 3400911
Tnterest related fees. -1.312.354 =1 430,170
19.161 665 22376.518

INTEREST EXPENSE
V6311216 1115311215

Interest expense horrowings frum groap Company 18,607,369 21,920,058
Hank interest expenses 32315 15.788
18,639,795 21.935.846
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.

Notes to the Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016

OPERATING COSTS

M d liary and ing fees

Oxeasional consultancy fees

Nopededucuble VAT

Legal services

Furced exceution expenaes.

Latigations expenses

‘Other serviees (audit, valustion, banking fe, postage and travellng)

TAXATION

In 2016 and 2013, ths stem can be detaiked as follows

Result before taxation

Less Foreign exchange gain/(loss)

Less. none taxahle operating income

‘Taxable profit

Statutory tax rate 20% over 200 000

Statutory tax rute 25% over remaining amount

Corporate Income tax current vear
Effestive tax rate

The movements in the taxation are as follows

Opening balance

Estmale tax charge for the year
Payments made

Amounts refunded by the Tax Authorities
Closing halance

The nomunal Corporate income Lax in the Netherlands 13 20% for the first EUR 200 000 and the remaimung taxable result 25%

(amounts m EUR)

Page 30

1N/16-311216 1717153112115
TOL00 2917
43,639 109,177
71,768 62712
19L7RT To.204
167,731 108,766
275,582 71 806
.11 70.547
R92618 572128
V116=3112/16 V115311215
10.802 389 439.829
495,106 1.458,837
=TL093.094 =1.712,197
204,400 186.470
40,000 37294
1100

AL100 261058
A1.160 55.299
038% $48%

3Inv016 NA22015
458213 478219
-i1,100 (37.294)
142,603 77,500

(141,478) 60.212)

418.238

458.213
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.

Notes to the Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016
(amounts in EUR)

1§ RELATED PARTIES

Partics ure considered to be related if one party has the ability 1o control the other party or excreise significant influence aver the other panty in making financial or operation
decisions

The Cempany’s immediate parent and controlling entity 1s ERIB New Europe Holding B.V .a wholly owned subsidiary of Ewrobank Ergasias S.A (the Bank) which 1s Listed in
the Athens Stock Exchange

In November 2015, following the completion of the Bank's share capital werease, fully covered by imvestors. institutional and others the percentage of the Bank's ordinary
shares with voling nghts held by the HFSF decreased from 35 41% 10 2 38%

Despite the I significant dectease of its e the HESE is still considered to have significant influence over the Bank In particular, in the conteat of the
Law 386472010, as in force, HFSF exercises its votng rights in fhe Bank’s General Asscmbly only for decisions concerning the amendment of the Bank’s Articles of
Associztion, including the mcrease of decrease of the Bank's capital or the granting of a comespomding authonzation to the Bank's Board, decisions concerning the mergers,
dnasions. , revivals, extension of di dissoly of the Bank, the transfer of assets (including the sale of subsid, ), of any other i Juring approval
by anincreased majonity as provided for in Company Law 2190/1920 In addition, the Hank has entered into a new Relationship Frumework Agreement (RFA) with the HFSF
om 4 Devember 2015 replacing the provious one, mgned on 26 August 2014

The refated parties considered for reporting purposes comprize of Bancpost $ A, Eurolife KRB Asigwari Generale § A, Fwolife ERB Asigwari de Viata SA. Eurobunk
Private Bank Luxembourg § A , Eurohank Cyprus Ltd and FRH New Furope Funding Il B V. which are entities controlled by Furobank Ergasias § A
The related pasty transactions the Company is imvolved in are inchudedd 1 the Balance Sheet and Income Statement and fisther disclosed in this nole

A number of transactions are entered mio with related parties m the normal course of the busmess These include loans, deponts and foraign cumeney ransactions and
acquisition of other services. The volumnes of refated party transactions, vutstanding balances at year-cnd, and refating expensc and income for the year are as follows

“The related purty transactions that refer to the Income Statement can be speciied as follows

V116311216 V1531112115

Interest expense barrowings Eurvbank Cyprus «18,639,795 =21,935,846
Hank fees Bancpost SA -29.938 -24.437
Expenses relating to mnterest income on loans & advances Bancpast SA -1,058.593 -1,197,935
Expenses relating to interesl income on loans & advances Ewolife ERB Insurance 2253762 -232235
Interest income Eurbank Cyprus Lid - 9
Intcrest income Bancpast SA 1.353 1105
Operating expenses Furohank Property Services SA Romania 5333 =
!19 JH6,06' !t 23, gz EE
party that refier 10 the Balance Sheet can be sp d as follows
1163111286 LINS311218
Cument accounts with banks Bancpust SA 2007648 72n7
‘Cunrant acconnts with banks Eurobank Cyvpius 93,716 73391
“Term deposits with other banks Bancpost SA 2,457,085 1704712
Term deposits with other banks Purobank Cyvprus 2076.726 2076726
Loans & advences t custemers (prepaid origination fees) Bancpost SA 45,524 220.250
Other recenvables Hancpoal SA 97.248 97,605
Other recervables Eurobank Cyprus 56,166 36.166
“Term loans from banks Eurobank Cvprus 1. ~182,225.754 =322.478.580
Other payahles to Group Company -3,314833 2,076,540
Impaimierits nut vet charged under the limited recourse guarantee with Eurobank Cyprus Lid 17.733,038 -
{261.084,485) {318,008,360)
Pasl P aterhouseCoopers
o= Actountants NV,
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.

Notes to the Financlal Statements as at December 31, 2016
(amounts m EUR)

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Noofl halanes sheet 1 or obligations, afecting the fis ' hav | to date

OTHER INFORMATION ON GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

During the year under review the Company did not have any enployees Flence, it did not pay any wages and related social security

The audit fecs of EUR 30000 (2013 EUR 30 000) cumpnses the fees of independent extermal auditor PocewatarhotiseCoopers
Accountanis N V. for the statutory audit of the financial statements

The external undependent auditor has not charged any fees relating Lo other assuranee related services. lax or any other consuling services
DIRECTORS

Duning the curment and the previous financial year the Company had four Managing Dircctors, whe recerved no remunsration during the current financial year The Company
s no Supervisory Directors

As per Januany 30, 2017, Mr ER Janssenss has resigned as Managing Director of the Company, and as per same date M1 LP Elstershamis has been appointed as
Managing Director of the Company

OTHER INFORMATION

POSITION OF EUROBANK GROUP
Macroeconomic environment

Girecee's teal GDP 15 expectal 1o grow by 1.8% in 2017, according to the 2018 Draft Budget submitted in Parhament in early October 2017 (European Commussion Autumn
Fuorscast for 20017 at | 6%) from =003% m 2016, according 10 recent Helleme Sutistical Authonty (ELSTAT) data. On the fiscal front, the 2016 Greece's primary halance
registered a surplis of 3.9% of GDP outperforming the 0 5% of GDI® Third Feonomic Adjustment Program (TEAP) target According to the 2018 Draft Budget the primary
surplus for 2017 and 2018 14 expectad at 2 2% and 3 6% of GDI, respectively

In Junc 2017, Greeee, afler the unplementation of a series of pnor actions including structural reforms and fiscal structural measires amonnting 1o 2% of GDE for the post
program peried, successfully concluded the second review of TEAP, which paved the way for the release of the next loan tranche o Greeoe umder the existing adjustment
program, amounting (0 € § S ba m tww sub-tranches. for debt senvicing neods and arrears clearance: The first sub-tranche of € 77 b has been dishursed 10 June 2017 The
socond sub-tranche of € 08 bn was dishursed 1n late October 2017 after the progress by the Greek authontics towards the clearance of the general government arrears. 1o the
private sector. On 23 July 2017, the Greek govenment. on the back of the alk positny isued 1 € 3 bn five-year bond ot 3 yield of 4 625% for the
first ume since July 2014, The proceeds of the bond issue will be usad for forther habality/debt marugunuu.nul for the build-up of a state cash bufer 1n the context of the 15
June 2017 Burwgroup’s decisions

The completion of the second program tevaew has reduced the incertamties that provailed during the first months of he year and unproved expectations for an mercase n the
domestie cconomic actvity n Lhe second hall of 2017, The third review of TEAP commenced at the end of October 2017 and its timely completion would lead to the
disbursement of 2n additional € § b The decsive implementation of the reforms agreed in the context of the TEAF, the implementation of fusther debl selief measures in
acenndaee with 24 May 2016 Ewogroup decisions, the mobilization. of Ewopean Union (EU) funding 1o suppurt domestic ivestment and job aeatin, the attraction of
forengn and domestic capital and the adoption of an extrovert economic development model would facilitate the restoration of confidence in the prospeets of the Greek cconomy
and the further stabilization of the domestic cconomie emvironment, which are necessary conditions for the retum of the eountry to 2 strong and sustainable growth path

Currently, the main nsks and uncertamties ere assoctated wath (a) the possible delays in the implementation of the reforns’ agenda in order lo meet the next largets and
milestones of the TEAP, (b) the impact on the Jevel of economic activity and on the attraction of direct investmients trom the liscal and social security-related measurcs agread
under the reviews of the TEAP, (v) the tmng of a full bt of restinetions in the free movement of capital and the respective umpact on the lovel of ceonomice actvaty, (d) the
pussible slow pace of deposits inllows amd/ or possible delavs in the effe of ing exposires (NPEs) a5 a tesult of the challenging macrocconomic
comditions in Greeee and () the geopolitical conditions m the brosder region and the exterml shocks from a slowdown i the global economy

Liquidity risk

[naceordance with the agreement with the European partners the authorities are commuitted to preserving sullicient hquidity in the hanking svatenr, as long as Grecee meets it
obhigations under the ESM program The successful ampletion of the sccond review of the TEAP has enhanced Greece's eredibality towards the international markets and
improved the domestic sconomic sentiment, which along with the retum 1o positive economic gruwth rate is expected fo sccelerale in tum the deposit inflows in the banking
system, the faster relaxation of capital controls and the further access to the markets for hqudity

As at 30 September 2017, Eurobank (the Bank) has managed to reduce its dependence on Eurosystem funding mandy through assel deleveraging. deposit mflows and
inereased market repos on covered bonds and Greek treasury bills. Tn the same context, the Bank also reduced its participation i the secand stream of the Hellenic Republic’s
hquidity support plan
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.Y.

Notes to the Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016
{amounts in EUR)

Salvency risk

The Group monitors closely he d in the Greek it taking into account s direct and indircet exposure 1o sovereign nisk. A major area of
focus 1¢ the active management of non-performing expusures, with the aim 1o substantially reduce ther stock in sceordance with the Bank's operativnal tangets and tiking
advantage of the Group's intrnal wffastructuse, the important legislative changes and the external partnerships that have taken o are expected to tehe place

The Group remans focused on the oiganic mmglhmnguhuapnalpnsnmhhﬁmhu \p of pre-p ison income while its rubust nsk

practices, and by procosding to additional intiatives asscciated with the ion or £ . in Greece and abroad, that will gencrate o
release further capital and/or neduce nak weighteld assets “The Group’s Common Equity Tier | (CET1) o stoed at 17 3 % at 30 September 2017 (31 December 2016
17 6%) and the net profil atinbutable to sharcholders amounted to € 61 millwon for the period ended 30 September 2017 (31 December 2016 € 230 million)

The Management, taking into consideration the above factors relating to the adequacy of the Group's capital position and its anticipated continued aceess fo Eurosystem
funding over the foresceable future, as well as the improving merocconamic conditions in Greece, has been sntisfied that the finaneial statements of the Company i be
prepansd on 4 going concern basis

[Post halance sheet events

Legistation an the conversion of CHF denominated loans o Romanian Lew
On 18 October 2016, the Rumznian by passed a bill thut allows borrowers (o comvert Swass frunc-denominated loans into local curmecey ‘Leu” using the
exchange rate prevailing on the datc they were ariginated On 7 February 2017, the Romanian Constitutional Court (RCC) ruled that the sbove legislation is inconstitutional
The Court devision was grounded mainly on the breach of the principle of *bicameralism® (i the bill. in the form adopted by the Chamber of Deputics, 15 significently
dufferent to the one adepted by the Senate) and the sntroduction of 2n ‘automatic hardshsp mechantsm which i unfair to creditors

Romanian Legistation on the discharge of deht abligations (*Datio in Solutum ')
In May 2016, Taw 77/2016 on the discharge of debt oblizations ('Daho in Solutum’) came into force in Romama. In particular, the said law provides for the dischange in full

and under cestamn procenditions of the loans § by diaduals and securat by mortgage amangements by “pavment in kind' through the transfir of the mortgaged.
property.

Accardmg to the devision of the Romanian Constitutzonal Court (RCC) dated 25 October 2016 which was published 1 the Romanian Oflicial Gazette vn 18 January 2017,
the specific law is portsally 1 and the Romanian courts of Law shall venfy the existenze of hardship conditions when called to decide upon a *Datio in Solutum’
casc based on this law

Above mentioned past balance shoet events Jo not alfect the linancial posation of the Company as at 31 12 2016

Ihe Bosrd of Monaging Directors,
$ Prvchogvios E Zois
LP Elstershamis R Wemm

Amsterdan, January 31, 2018
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II BV,

Notes to the Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016
{amounts m EUR)

Other information

Statutory provision regarding appropriation of Result

Subject to the provisions under Dutch Taw that no dividends can be declared untl all losses have been cleared, the otlier reserves are at the dispesal of the shareholder in
accordance with Anticle 22 of the Company's Articles of Association.

Furthermore, Dutch law presenbes that any profit distnbution mav only b de to the extent that the sharcholders' squity execeds the amount of the tssued capital and the
lTegal reserves

‘Apprepristionof pesuly

The Board of Managing Direetors proposes to add the net prfit for the vear to the lated profits Thus 1 1 allocation of result has been mcwpurnted in the financial
statements, and 18 subject to the approval of the General Meeung of Sharcholders
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Independent auditor’s report

To: the general meeting of ERB New Europe Funding II B.V.

Report on the financial statements 2016

Our opinion

In our opinion ERB New Europe Funding II B.V.’s financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the company as at 31 December 2016, and of its result and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union (EU-IFRS) and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements 2016 of ERB New Europe Funding I B.V.,
Amsterdam (‘the company’).

The financial statements comprise:

o the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016;

o the following statements for 2016: the income statement, the statements of comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows; and

o the notes, comprising a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statements
is EU-IFRS and the relevant provisions of Part g of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

I'he basis for our opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on Auditing.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the section ‘Our responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements’ of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

75DKF4CHKPJJ-1612302501-17

PricewaterhouseCoopers Accountants N.V., Fascinatio Boulevard 350, 3065 WB Rotterdam, P.O. Box 8800,
3009 AV Rotterdam, the Netherlands
T: +31 (0) 88 792 00 10, F: +31 (0) 88 792 95 33, www.pwec.nl

‘PwC' is the brand under which PricewaterhouseCoopers Accountants N.V. (Chamber of Commerce 34180285), PricewaterhouseCoopers Belastingadviseurs N.V.
(Chamber of Commerce 34180284), PricewaterhouseCoopers Advisory N.V. (Chamber of Commerce 34180287), PricewaterhouseCoopers Compliance Services B.V
(Chamber of Commerce 51414406), PricewaterhouseCoopers Pensions, Actuarial & Insurance Services B.V. (Chamber of Commerce 54226368),
PricewaterhouseCoopers B.V. (Chamber of Commerce 34180289) and other companies operate and provide services. These services are governed by General Terms
and Conditions (‘algemene voorwaarden’), which include provisions regarding our liability. Purchases by these companies are govemed by General Terms and Conditions
of Purchase (‘algemene inkoopvoorwaarden'). At www.pwc.nl mare detailed information on these companies is available, including these General Terms and Conditions
and the General Terms and Conditions of Purchase, which have also been filed at the Amsterdam Chamber of Commerce
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We are independent of ERB New Europe Funding II B.V. in accordance with the ‘Verordening inzake
de onafhankelijkheid van accountants bij assurance opdrachten’ (ViO — Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants, a regulation with respect to independence) and other relevant independence
requirements in the Netherlands. Furthermore, we have complied with the ‘Verordening gedrags- en
beroepsregels accountants’ (VGBA — Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, a regulation with
respect to rules of professional conduct).

Report on the other information included in the annual report

In addition to the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, the annual report contains
other information that consists of:

o the directors’ report; and

o the other information pursuant to Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Based on the procedures performed as set out below, we conclude that the other information:
© is consistent with the financial statements and does not contain material misstatements;
J contains all information that is required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

We have read the other information. Based on our knowledge and understanding obtained in our audit
of the financial statements or otherwise, we have considered whether the other information contains
material misstatements.

By performing our procedures, we comply with the requirements of Part g of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil
Code and the Dutch Standard 720. The scope of such procedures was substantially less than the scope
of those performed in our audit of the financial statements.

The board of managing directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information, including
the directors’ report and the other information pursuant to Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.
Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audil

Responsibilities of the board of managing directors
The board of managing directors is responsible for:

o the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with EU-IFRS
and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code; and for
o such internal control as the board of managing directors determines is necessary to enable the

preparation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

As part of the preparation of the financial statements, the board of managing directors is responsible
for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Based on the financial reporting
frameworks mentioned, the board of managing directors should prepare the financial statements using
the going-concern basis of accounting unless the board of managing directors either intends to
liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The board of
managing directors should disclose events and circumstances that may cast significant doubt on the
company’s ability to continue as a going concern in the financial statements.

ERB New Europe Funding II B.V. — 75DKF4CHKPJJ-1612302591-17
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Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our responsibility is to plan and perform an audit engagement in a manner that allows us to obtain
sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for our opinion. Our audit opinion aims to
provide reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. Reasonable assurance is a high but not absolute level of assurance which makes it
possible that we may not detect all misstatements. Misstatements may arise due to irregularities,
including fraud, or error. They are considered to be material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the
financial statements.

Materiality affects the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and the evaluation of the
effect of identified misstatements on our opinion.

A more-lefailed description of our responsibilities is set out in the appendix to our report.

M.F.A. Corver RA

ERB New Europe Funding II B.V. — 75DKF4CHKPJJ-1612302591-17
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\ppendix to our auditor’s report on the financial statements
2016 of ERB New Europe Funding II B.V.

In addition to what is included in our auditor’s report we have further set out in this appendix our
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements and explained what an audit involves.

I'he auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
We have exercised professional judgement and have maintained professional scepticism throughout
the audit in accordance with Dutch Standards on Auditing, ethical requirements and independence
requirements. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. Qur audit
consisted, among other things, of the following:

a Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, designing and performing audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtaining audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the intentional override of internal control.

o Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control.

° Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the board of managing directors.
o Concluding on the appropriateness of the board of managing directors’ use of the going-concern

basis of accounting, and based on the audit evidence obtained, concluding whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events and/or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report
and are made in the context of our opinion on the financial statements as a whole. However,
future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and evaluating whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of managing directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

ERB New Europe Funding II B.V. — 75DKF4CHKPJJ-1612302591-17
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